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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

JULIO GARCIA, individually and on behalf of 
all those similarly situated,  

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

FIRSTCREDIT INC. D/B/A FIRSTCREDIT 
INTERNATIONAL CORP., 

Defendant. 
/ 

CASE NO.  

 
NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

Defendant, FIRSTCREDIT INC. D/B/A FIRSTCREDIT INTERNATIONAL CORP. 

(hereinafter “Defendant”), hereby gives notice, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, and 28 U.S.C. §§ 

1441 and 1446, that the case entitled Julio Garcia, individually and on behalf of all those similarly 

situated, v. FirstCredit Inc. d/b/a FirstCredit International Corp., Case No. 2023-CA-955, is being 

removed from the Circuit Court, Hernando County, Florida to the United States District Court for 

the Middle District of Florida.  In support of this Notice, Defendant states: 

1. On March 23, 2023, Plaintiff, JULIO GARCIA (hereinafter “Plaintiff”), filed this 

action against Defendant, in the Circuit Court in Hernando County, Florida under the caption Julio 

Garcia, individually and on behalf of all those similarly situated, v. FirstCredit Inc. d/b/a 

FirstCredit International Corp., Case No. 2023-CA-955. 

2. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff served Defendant with the initial Complaint 

on April 18, 2023. A copy of the state court Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 1, and a copy 

the State Court docket is attached as Exhibit 2; A copy of the complete court file is attached as 

Exhibit 3.  There is no answer to the complaint filed to date.   
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3. The Complaint asserts federal law claims against Defendant for alleged violations 

of the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692 et seq. (“FDCPA”) and for 

alleged violations of the federal regulations implementing the FDCPA. 

4. This Notice was filed with the Clerk of the United States District Court within thirty 

(30) days after service of the complaint upon the Defendant. 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b). 

5. This action is a civil action and is one over which this Court has original subject 

matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, and is an action that can be removed to this District 

Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441, as a result of Plaintiff alleging violations of the FDCPA.    

6. In the Complaint, Plaintiff alleges that Defendant was acting as a debt collector in 

attempting to collect a debt from Plaintiff. 

7. Plaintiff claims Defendant violated §§ 1692e, f, and g of the FDCPA, and the 

requirements of 12 C.F.R. § 1006.34(b)(3), in its attempted collection of Plaintiff's debt.  Plaintiff 

claims aggregate class damages “in the millions of dollars” and seeks recovery of statutory 

damages and costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees under the FDCPA. 

8. Plaintiff’s Complaint invokes federal question jurisdiction because the allegations 

involve claims under the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692 et seq.  

9. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441(c)(1) If a civil action includes-- 

(A) a claim arising under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the 
United States (within the meaning of section 1331 of this title), and  

(B) a claim not within the original or supplemental jurisdiction of 
the district court or a claim that has been made nonremovable by 
statute, the entire action may be removed if the action would be 
removable without the inclusion of the claim described in 
subparagraph (B).  

(2) Upon removal of an action described in paragraph (1), the district 
court shall sever from the action all claims described in paragraph 
(1)(B) and shall remand the severed claims to the State court from 
which the action was removed. Only defendants against whom a 
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claim described in paragraph (1)(A) has been asserted are required 
to join in or consent to the removal under paragraph (1). 

10. Promptly after the filing of this Notice of Removal, Defendant will file a notice of 

filing notice of removal with the Clerk of the Circuit Court, Hernando County, Florida, as required 

by 28 U.S.C. § 1446. Written notice of the filing of this notice of removal is also being served 

upon counsel for the Plaintiff. 

11. Nothing in this Notice of Removal shall be interpreted as a waiver or 

relinquishment of any of Defendant’s rights to assert any defense or affirmative matter. 

WHEREFORE, Defendant respectfully requests that this case proceed in this Court as an 

action properly removed to it. 

 s/ Barbara Fernandez 

 

Barbara Fernandez 
Florida Bar No. 0493767 
bfernandez@hinshawlaw.com 
Peter A. Hernandez 
Florida Bar No. 64309 
pahernandez@hinshawlaw.com 
HINSHAW & CULBERTSON LLP 
2525 Ponce de Leon Blvd. 
Fourth Floor 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
Telephone: 305-358-7747 
Facsimile: 305-577-1063 
Secondary: dconnolly@hinshawlaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendant FIRSTCREDIT INC. 
D/B/A FIRSTCREDIT INTERNATIONAL 
CORP. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on May 17,  2023, I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk 

of the Court by using the CM/ECF system and a copy was served via email upon the following: 

Jibrael S. Hindi, Esq. 
Jennifer G. Simil, Esq.  
The Law Offices of Jibrael S. Hindi 
110 SE 6th Street, Suite 1744 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
jibrael@jibraellaw.com 
jen@jibraellaw.com  
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFF 
 

 

 
 
 s/ Barbara Fernandez 

 

Barbara Fernandez 
Florida Bar No. 0493767 
bfernandez@hinshawlaw.com 
Peter A. Hernandez 
Florida Bar No. 64309 
pahernandez@hinshawlaw.com 
HINSHAW & CULBERTSON LLP 
2525 Ponce de Leon Blvd. 
Fourth Floor 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
Telephone: 305-358-7747 
Facsimile: 305-577-1063 
Secondary: dconnolly@hinshawlaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendant FIRSTCREDIT INC. 
D/B/A FIRSTCREDIT INTERNATIONAL 
CORP. 
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EXHIBIT 1 
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